
Memorandum 

Date: February 27, 2025 

To: SOUTHERN NEVADA DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 

From: Daniel Isler, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Supervisor DI 
Daniel Burns, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Manager DB 
Chris Saxton, MPH-EH, REHS, Environmental Health Director 
Cassius Lockett, PhD, District Health Officer 

Subject:   Variance request for an existing septic system located at 4130 and 4140 W. Dewey 
Dr., Las Vegas, NV 89118 to remain split across two parcels 

I. BACKGROUND:

Ernest Moody (“Petitioner”) is requesting a variance to obtain approval for a Tenant 
Improvement in accordance with Section 3 of the Southern Nevada District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Individual Sewage Disposal Systems and Liquid Waste Management (“SNHD 
ISDS Regulations”) and to allow future building permits to be issued for the properties located at 
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 162-30-801-009 and 162-30-801-010, also known as 4140 W 
Dewey Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89118 and 4130 W Dewey Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89118, respectively 
(collectively the “Subject Property”).   

Petitioner requests a variance from Section 3.7 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which states that 
a “Tenant Improvement approval request shall be denied if the existing individual sewage 
disposal system (ISDS) is in violation of any of these Regulations.” The existing septic system is 
currently in violation of Sections 5.1 and 11.26 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations. 

Petitioner further requests a variance from Section 11.26 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which 
states that an “ISDS must be constructed on and remain on the same parcel as the structure(s) it 
serves.” The ISDS serves a single commercial building that is split between both parcels of the 
Subject Property. The septic tank and most of the leach field were constructed on the eastern 
parcel (162-30-801-010), with the remainder of the leach field located on the western parcel (162-
30-801-009).
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Petitioner further requests a variance from Section 5.1 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which 
states that “No septic tank or soil absorption system shall be located within ten feet (10’) of any 
property line…” The ISDS system is within ten feet of the shared property line between the two 
parcels. 
 
Petitioner states the following with regards to these requirements: 
 

1. There must be circumstances or conditions which are unique to the applicant, and do not 
generally affect other persons subject to the regulation: 
 
“The existing commercial building was built in 1985 and straddles 2 parcels with the property line 
splitting the building in half. The ISDS was also installed straddling the property line and serves 
both sides of the building. The installed location is in compliance with all other adjacent property 
setbacks. However, “SNHD ISDS Regulations”, states “No septic tank or soil absorption system 
shall be located within ten feet (10’) of any property or tree, or shall trees be planted within ten 
(10’) of a soil absorption system of septic tank”. Therefore, since the ISDS is within 10’-0” of a 
property line a variance may be required. Since both parcels and owned by the same owner, the 
variance does not affect any other adjacent properties.” 
 

2. There must be circumstances or conditions which make compliance with the regulation 
unduly burdensome and cause a hardship to and abridge a substantial property right of 
the applicant, and the variance is necessary to render substantial justice to and preserve 
the property rights of the applicant. Please indicate in what manner compliance with the 
regulation would be burdensome or cause a hardship on your business or how the free 
use of your property may be affected (if economic factors are an issue, please include 
estimates regarding the costs that would be incurred by compliance): 
 
“The owner was awarded a government contract to manufacture ammunition shell casings for the 
U.S. Government in support of the DOD and must be in production within 2 months. During the 
plan review in September 2024, Clark County Building Department questioned the property line 
going through the building and instructed to resolve the concern one of the two ways: 1. Merge the 
parcels thus removed the property line or 2. Provide a Reciprocal Easement Agreement (REA) thus 
leaving the property line in place and granting full easements for parking, access and utilities. 
Because of the time sensitive nature of the project, the owner selected the option (REA) since it is 
the fastest route and hired Kaempher Crowell (Land Use Attorney) to complete and file/record the 
REA. This was completed in October 2024. The system meets all requirements of the Southern 
Nevada Health District (SNHD) regulations, with the only exception being its location on the 
property line between the two parcels owned by the same individual. Importantly, the system does 
not impact adjacent landowners, adheres to the required setbacks, and is both healthy and fully 
functional. Additionally, connecting to the city sewer at this time would disrupt the schedule and 
potentially jeopardize Carson Manufacturing’s government contract.” 
 

3. Granting the variance will not be detrimental or pose a danger to public health and safety. 
Please provide evidence that the variance request, if approved, will not adversely affect 
the safe and sanitary operation of the applicant(s) pool, spa, or food establishment: 
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“This variance will not be detrimental or pose a danger to public health and safety because the 
septic system is in full compliance with the SNHD ISDS Regulations.” 

                                                                                                          
The Subject Property is depicted in Attachment D as Lot 3 and Lot 4 of the recorded parcel map, 
which was approved in 1985. The property has not been improved since the adoption of the 
current SNHD ISDS Regulations in 2009. 
 
Examination of the Clark County Assessor’s records and parcel genealogy show that Petitioner 
is the second owner of the property and obtained the Subject Property in February 2022. An 
analysis of the surrounding area shows that there is one commercial well and 65 permitted septic 
systems within a square mile of the Subject Property. 
 
  II. RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Subject Property consists of two parcels with one commercial building straddling the two 
parcels. The two parcels are owned by the same person and one tenant occupies the entire 
building. The ISDS was uncovered and inspected by Hardin & Sons, Inc. in December 2024 (see 
Attachments E-F). It appears to be functioning adequately and is in compliance with all other 
regulations.  
 
Staff are of the opinion that granting the variance would not endanger public health or safety. 
However, Section 19.4.1 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations states that “Staff will not recommend 
variance approval for septic systems on lots where municipal sewer is gravity accessible within 
four hundred feet (400’) from the nearest property line.” The nearest connection point to Clark 
County Water Reclamation (CCWRD) sewer is directly in front of the property in W Dewey 
Drive. The Petitioner has initiated the permitting process for sewer connection but requires 
additional time to complete the process. 
 
Based on the proximity to CCWRD sewer, staff recommend DENIAL of the variance as requested 
by the Petitioner. If the Board of Health approves the variance, staff recommend approval with 
the following conditions outlined in Section III. 
 
           III. CONDITIONS: 
 

1. Petitioner and their successor(s) in interest shall discontinue use of the ISDS, connect 
structure it serves to the CCWRD community sewage system, and abandon or remove 
the ISDS in accordance with SNHD ISDS Regulations within one year of variance 
approval. 

 
2. Petitioner and their successor(s) will abide by the operation and maintenance 

requirements of the most current SNHD Regulations governing individual sewage 
disposal systems. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Variance Candidate Application 
B. Authorization Letter 
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C. Justification Letter from the Petitioner 
D. Recorded Parcel Map 
E. Site Plan Prepared by Hardin & Sons, Inc. 
F. Letter from Hardin & Sons, Inc. 
G. Public Notice 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 1 of 3) 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 2 of 3) 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 3 of 3) 
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Attachment B: Authorization Letter 
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Attachment C: Justification Letter from Petitioner (Page 1 of 2) 
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Attachment B: Justification Letter from Petitioners (Page 2 of 2) 
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Attachment D: Recorded Parcel Map 
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Attachment E: Site Plan Prepared by Hardin & Sons, Inc. 
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Attachment F: Letter from Hardin & Sons, Inc. 
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Attachment G: Public Notice 
 

 


